
FAIRFIELD CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

FAIRFIELD MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
5350 PLEASANT AVENUE 

FAIRFIELD, OHIO  45014 
 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 9, 2012        7:00 PM 
 
 
MAYOR………………………………….RONALD A. D’EPIFANIO   COUNCILMEMBER AT-LARGE…TIM ABBOTT 
COUNCILMEMBER 1ST WARD……….ADAM B. JONES    COUNCILMEMBER AT-LARGE…TIMOTHY M. MEYERS 
COUNCILMEMBER 2ND WARD………JEFFREY L. HOLTEGEL   COUNCILMEMBER AT-LARGE…MICHAEL OLER 
COUNCILMEMBER 3RD WARD………DEBBIE PENNINGTON   CITY MANAGER………………….ARTHUR E. PIZZANO 
COUNCILMEMBER 4TH WARD………TERRY SENGER    CLERK OF COUNCIL…………….ALISHA WILSON 

LAW DIRECTOR………………….JOHN H. CLEMMONS 
 
Guidelines for Citizen Comments: Thank you for your interest and participation in city government.  Fairfield City Council’s Guidelines for Citizen 
Comments describe the rules for addressing City Council. The guidelines are posted in the Council Chambers. 
 
ADA Notice:  The City of Fairfield is pleased to provide accommodations to disabled individuals or groups and encourage full participation in city 
government.  Should special accommodations be required, please contact the Clerk of Council at 867-5383 at least 48 hours in advance of the 
meeting. 

 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Prayer/Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3. Roll Call 
 
4. Agenda Modifications 
 
5. Executive Session Requests 
 
6. Public Hearing(s) 
 
7. Special Presentations and Citizen Comments 
 
8. Mayor/Council Reports 

 
9. Approval of Minutes 

a) Regular Meeting Minutes of  September 24, 2012 
 
10. OLD BUSINESS 

 
11.  NEW BUSINESS 

 
(A) DEVELOPMENT SERVICES COMMITTEE 

 Jeff Holtegel, Chairman; Tim Abbott, Vice Chairman, Tim Meyers, Member 
 
(1) Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to execute a revised FY 2012 Community Development Block 

(CDBG) application and agreement. 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 

 
(2) Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to execute the FY 2013 Community Development Block (CDBG) 

application and agreement and declaring an emergency. 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 



Page 2  
Agenda 

Regular Meeting 
October 9, 2012 

 
 

(B) FINANCE & BUDGET COMMITTEE 
 Tim Abbott, Chairman; Terry Senger, Vice Chairman, Mike Oler, Member 

 
(1) Appropriation Ordinance (Non-Contractual Item) - $7,480  for concrete repairs at the Water Treatment Plant; 

$22,000 for the 2012 Raised Pavement Markers (RPMs) Program; $24,770 for upgrade of security camera and 
surveillance system at the Water and Wastewater Plants. 

 
• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
 
12. Meeting Schedule 
  

Monday, October 22 Council-Manager Briefing, 6:00 p.m.; Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 
Monday, November 26 Council-Manager Briefing, 5:30 p.m.; Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 
Monday, December 3 Council-Manager Briefing, 6:00 p.m.; Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 

 
13. Executive Session of Council (if needed) 

 
14. Adjournment 



MINUTES  
REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL  

SEPTEMBER 24, 2012  
 
Call to Order  
Mayor Ronald A. D’Epifanio called the Regular Meeting of Council to order at 7:00 PM at the Fairfield 
Municipal Building, 5350 Pleasant Avenue.  
 
Prayer/Pledge of Allegiance  
Councilmember Holtegel led in prayer. American Heritage Girls Troop OH 3017 led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
Roll Call  
Clerk Wilson called the roll of Council. Councilmember Holtegel, Councilmember Pennington, 
Councilmember Senger, Councilmember Abbott, Councilmember Oler, Councilmember Meyers, and 
Councilmember Jones. 
 
Agenda Modifications  
 
Executive Session Requests  
 
Public Hearing(s)  
 
Special Presentations and Citizen Comments  
 
Mayor/Council Reports  
Councilmember Oler reported that Cincinnati UC Health helicopter service will be housed at the Butler 
County Regional Airport. The aircraft is faster and has more safety features than the previous aircraft, 
and response times should be much faster with the new model and with it being housed at the local 
airport. 
 
Councilmember Pennington reported that the Hamilton Journal News had an article about Mayor 
D’Epifanio in today’s newspaper. The article honored residents for volunteer work they perform in the 
community. 
 
Councilmember Holtegel reminded everyone that September is Prostate Cancer Awareness Month and 
to get testing done as recommended by your doctor. He also reported that some citizens are frustrated 
at the literature distributed to neighborhood homes; these citizens do not want to receive the literature. 
There was a discussion of the legality of these distributions. It was mentioned that the situation has 
been reviewed in the past. Law Director Clemmons reported that it is a very complicated situation, given 
the publishers’ first amendment rights, but it is something that can be looked at again. 
 
Approval of Minutes  
Regular Meeting Minutes of September 10, 2012  

• The Regular Meeting Minutes of September 10, 2012 were approved as written.  
 
 
 

http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=200&meta_id=34722
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=200&meta_id=34723
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=200&meta_id=34724
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=200&meta_id=34729
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=200&meta_id=34730


OLD BUSINESS 
 

PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE  
Terry Senger, Chairman; Debbie Pennington, Vice Chairman, Adam Jones, Member 

 

Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement with The Joe Nuxhall Miracle 
League Fields, Inc. for the operation of the Field of Dreams recreation complex.  
 
Councilmember Senger presented the third reading of this ordinance. 
 
Councilmember Senger, seconded by Councilmember Pennington moved to adopt . Motion Carried 7-0. 
ORDINANCE NO. 91-12. ADOPTED 7-0. 
 

FINANCE & BUDGET COMMITTEE  
Tim Abbott, Chairman; Terry Senger, Vice Chairman, Mike Oler, Member 

 

Ordinance to amend subsection 953.01(a) of Ordinance No. 166-84, the Codified Ordinances of Fairfield, 
Ohio, relative to the service fees for residential garbage and solid waste collection and recycling.  
 
Councilmember Abbott presented the third reading of this ordinance. 
 
Councilmember Abbott, seconded by Councilmember Oler moved to adopt . Motion Carried 7-0. 
ORDINANCE NO. 92-12. ADOPTED 7-0. 
 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES COMMITTEE  
Jeff Holtegel, Chairman; Tim Abbott, Vice Chairman, Tim Meyers, Member 

 

Ordinance to approve a modified development plan for a Kroger Gas Fueling Facility and to authorize 
the City Manager to sign a development agreement with the Kroger Limited Partnership I.  
 
Councilmember Holtegel presented the third reading of this ordinance. 
 
Councilmember Holtegel noted that it has been a long process, starting with Design Review and 
Planning Commission, and he would have voted against the fueling center in its original form. The 
requested changes have been made and the new design is pallatable. Councilmember Holtegel stated 
that he does not particularly like the use for that location, however, the zoning is in place and the plan 
meets the minimum requirements. He would have liked a larger building and is concerned about the 
access to the location. 
 
Development Services Director Tim Bachman noted that traffic engineer Jack Pflume was in attendance 
at the meeting and available to answer any questions Council had. 
 
Councilmember Tim Meyersasked Mr. Pflume if he took into account the amount a traffic that a Kroger 
gas station would attract to the intersection. Mr. Pflume explained that there were estimates made, 
based on nationally accepted data. Mr. Pflume explained that safety studies look more at the physical 

http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=200&meta_id=34734
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=200&meta_id=34734
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=200&meta_id=34738
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=200&meta_id=34738
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=200&meta_id=34742
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=200&meta_id=34742


characteristics of the location. He noted that there were several things suggested in the report to be 
done to the location to assist in making it as safe as possible. Councilmember Meyers commented that 
he uses the Kroger fuel center in Hamilton and the location and access driveways are similar to what the 
Fairfield location will have. He noted that it is always very congested and he would consider that a 
benchmark to use when considering a Kroger fuel center in Fairfield. He asked Mr. Pflume if the gas 
station will improve the safety of that corner (Pleasant and Nilles). Mr. Pflume stated that he thinks the 
gas station will improve the safety, because of the changes Kroger has agreed to make. He noted that 
there is a big difference between congestion and safety of a location.Councilmember Meyers asked 
Development Services Director Tim Bachman if there are any obligations on Kroger to make changes if it 
is deemed unsafe after it has been opened for a period of time. Mr. Bachman stated that there are some 
suggestions in Mr. Pflume’s report that Kroger do some analysis after the fuel center has been open for 
three to six months to see if additional safety measures are necessary. Aside from those suggestions, 
Kroger will not be financially responsible for additional safety measures deemed necessary by an expert. 
 
Councilmember Oler commented that the volume of traffic will impact the safety of the location, and 
Kroger fuel centers tend to have a high volume of traffic. Mr. Pflume answered that the safety of a 
location is determined more by the physical characteristics of the location than by the volume of traffic. 
He noted that he was asked to perform a safety study, which does not take into account volume of 
traffic. He was not asked to do a traffic impact study, which would take into account the volume of 
traffic at a location. Mr. Pflume then explained the differences in the two studies and the results of the 
safety study he conducted. 
 
Councilmember Abbott commented that he has been a supporter of the Kroger fueling center since day 
one and has thousands of signatures showing why he supports the project, because the residents want 
it. He was happy that Mr. Pflume was hired for the safety study, given the history between the city and 
Mr. Pflume. He noted that he was surprised that 70% of the customers that will use the fueling center 
are existing Fairfield residents and people that already travel through that intersection, so they are 
already familiar with how to navigate that intersection. Councilmember Abbott commended Kroger for 
their hard work and patience in working on the project. 
 
Mayor D’Epifanio commented that he is happy the city has Kroger as a business partner, however, he 
does not support the Kroger fueling center. He does not feel that it is the best option for the residents of 
Fairfield. He noted that he did not support the Forest Fair/Cincinnati Mills Mall development, either, 
because of the location. In his opinion, that mall has only created traffic and problems. He also 
commented that there are other city development projects that have he was opposed to that have not 
had problems, such as the Community Arts Center not being large enough to pay for itself. He noted 
that there were several items in the agreement with Kroger for the location at Village Green that have 
not been upheld by Kroger, probably due to management changes, and he does not want to see that 
happen with the fueling center. Mayor D’Epifanio reported that he has driven to Kroger in Hamilton and 
to Shell on Route 4 in Fairfield and the gas price is always within a penny, and the Kroger card is 
accepted at Shell for $0.10 off per gallon. He noted that he feels the access to the fueling center should 
be restricted to right-turn in and right-turn out only. He stated that Flowerama told him they were going 
out of business because their customers said the location was too difficult to get in and out of. He 
commented that he hopes the location stays as beautiful as the drawings have shown. 
 
Councilmember Senger commented that he is happy with the process and that it took so long to get to 
this point, because it shows the passion of the city to do what is best for the community. He thanked the 
city staff and Kroger for all of their hard work on the project and stated that he will be supporting it. 



 
Councilmember Pennington commented she voted against the project when it was presented to the BZA 
board, but now it is a better plan. She is supporting the project because the residents want it. She 
reported that the elderly have told her that they don’t use their points, because they can’t go to 
Hamilton to get gas. She noted that she wants to keep the dollars in Fairfield and having a fueling center 
here will do that. 
 
Councilmember Holtegel commented that if the project passes, the police chief should probably post 
people at the location to give warnings for a period of time to make sure they are not making illegal 
turns. 
 
Councilmember Jones commented that he also appreciates the work of city staff and Kroger on the 
project. He noted that this project is a culmination of a lot of hard work and compromise, and that 
Fairfield is showing that it is business friendly by accepting the project today. He agrees that the money 
should stay in Fairfield, and feels that the potential line of traffic is a good sign, instead of something 
negative. He would have liked to see the numbers prior to 2008 in the traffic study, when Taco Bell was 
in business there, and what the impact was at that time. He commented that the current condition of 
the location does not reflect well on Fairfield, and Kroger is taking on the financial responsiblity of 
cleaning up that property and making it look better. 
 
Resident Cathy Dubbs, 460 Regorian Drive, commented that she moved to the city about 20 years ago. 
She supports the fueling center and feels that the current condition of the location gives the impression 
that the city is dying, when it is not. She is very touched by the concern of council for the safety of the 
residents, but feels that it is more of a safety risk for residents to drive further to go to Hamilton to get 
gas at Kroger. 
 
Resident Jeff Rader, 4472 Rita Mae Drive, commented that he has lived in the city since 1995. He feels 
that common sense will intervene with people using the fueling center and most people will not try to 
turn left out of that driveway. He commented that if the fueling center is not approved, Kroger may 
move out of the Village Green location at some point because they want a fueling center, and then that 
leaves a larger empty building that will be difficult to find a use for. 
 
Resident Lee Marcus, 5437 Southgate Boulevard, commented that he has lived in Fairfield for eight 
years. He is proud to live in Fairfield and more proud than ever after attending the council meeting. He 
noted that some residents, like himself, may have 300-400 fuel points that they are unable to use 
because they don’t have the money to drive to Hamilton to fill their gas tank. He is proud that Fairfield is 
working so well with Kroger. 
 
Resident Joe Swartz, 5305 Bibury Road, commented that he was first against the Kroger fuel center, due 
to the architectural design. However, due the vast improvements made to the design and the 
landscaping, he now supports the project. Kroger has been in the city for 50 years and has done their 
part in meeting the city’s requests for changes to the design. He would like to see the project supported. 
 
Law Director John Clemmons clarified that Mr. Plume’s recommendations will be part of the 
development agreement with Kroger. 
 
Resident Kim Goodwin, 5327 Lakeside Drive, commented that she has lived in Fairfield for 25 years. She 
has been to all of the local Kroger fuel locations and feels that the proposed design for Fairfield will 



make it nicest location in the area. She was a customer at Flowerama and her way around the difficulties 
in traffic was to make a right from Nilles into the parking lot, and then a right out of the parking lot onto 
Pleasant, which she feels is a much safer way to access the location. She is hopeful that Council will pass 
the legislation. 
 
Councilmember Oler commented that everyone appreciates Kroger and he would like to see a fueling 
center, but would prefer it next to the store, instead of on the corner of the intersection. He noted that 
he has never seen a building turn out to look like the original drawing shows, but he hopes that the 
Kroger fuel center will. He does not feel that the store is very clean, because employees smoke outside 
and cigarette butts are on the ground. He would like to see some improvement in the store, possibly 
turn it into a Kroger Marketplace. He mentioned that most people don't pay attention to what they are 
signing, and simply sign a petition because a friend asks them to. 
 
Mayor D'Epifanio commented that Kroger Manager Speath is a credit to Kroger and is a great manager. 
He appreciates the work they do for the city. 
 
Councilmember Jones thanked the residents for their participation in the process. 
 
Councilmember Holtegel, seconded by Councilmember Abbott moved to adopt . Motion Carried 6-1. 
ORDINANCE NO. 93-12. ADOPTED 6-1, COUNCILMEMBER MIKE OLER DISSENTING. 
 

Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into an easement agreement with the Farhat S. Khan 
Trust.  
 
Councilmember Senger commented that this agreement states that the city will receive $22,500 for the 
portion of city property that Kroger needs to build an easement. 
 
Jonathan Wocher, McBride Dale Clarion, commented that he has been working with Kroger on this 
project for a year and he appreciates the work of the city staff and city manager as they went through 
the process. 
 
Monty Chesko, real estate manager with Kroger Cincinnati Division, thanked the city staff for their 
assistance and hard work on the project, as well as city council for their support and faith in their staff 
and Mr. Bachman. 
 
Tony Spaeth, Kroger Manager, thanked the city for the yes vote and asked that if there are any issues, 
please contact him directly and he will take care of it. The city's concerns are also his concerns. 
 
Councilmember Holtegel presented the third reading of this ordinance. 
 
Councilmember Holtegel, seconded by Councilmember Abbott moved to adopt . Motion Carried 7-0. 
ORDINANCE NO. 94-12. ADOPTED 7-0. 
 
 
 
 
 

http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=200&meta_id=34745
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=200&meta_id=34745


NEW BUSINESS 
 

COMMUNITY & PUBLIC RELATIONS COMMITTEE  
Debbie Pennington, Chairman; Jeff Holtegel, Vice Chairman, Adam Jones, Member 

 

Simple Motion: Motion approving the proposed City Council meeting schedule for November and 
December, 2012 as outlined in the Council Communication 11(A)(1) dated September 24, 2012.  
 
Motion to Amend the November 2012 council meeting schedule, by moving the council meeting to 
Tuesday, November 13, 2012, due to the Veteran’s Day holiday. Moved by Councilmember Senger, 
seconded by Councilmember Abbott. The Fairfield Community Foundation annual dinner is scheduled 
for November 13, so Councilmember Senger withdrew his motion following a new motion by 
Councilmember Meyers to cancel the November 12 meeting. 
 
Councilmember Meyers, seconded by Councilmember Oler moved to amend the November 2012 
council meeting schedule, by cancelling the November 12, 2012 meeting due to the Veteran's Day 
holiday. Motion Carried 7-0. 
 
Councilmember Pennington, seconded by Councilmember Oler moved to approve the amended 
proposed City Council meeting schedule for November and December 2012. Motion carried 7-0. SIMPLE 
MOTION NO. 24-12. APPROVED 7-0. 
 

PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE  
Mike Oler, Chairman; Debbie Pennington, Vice Chairman, Terry Senger, Member 

 

Simple Motion: Motion to approve a liquor permit application in the name of Big Lots Stores, Inc. DBA 
Big Lots #5268, 4507 Dixie Highway, Fairfield, OH 45014 (Permit Classes: C1 and C2).  
 
Councilmember Oler, seconded by Councilmember Meyers moved to approve a liquor permit 
application in the name of Big Lots Stores, Inc. Motion Carried 7-0. SIMPLE MOTION 25-12. APPROVED 7-
0. 
 

FINANCE & BUDGET COMMITTEE 
 Tim Abbott, Chairman; Terry Senger, Vice Chairman, Mike Oler, Member 

 

Appropriation Ordinance (Non-Contractual Item) - $24,088 for replacement of Route 4 underpass storm 
water pumps.  
 
Background: City Manager Pizzano recommended approving one non-contractual item in the amount of 
$24,088 for the replacement of Route 4 underpass storm water pumps. Legislative Action: 
Councilmember Abbott presented the first reading of this ordinance. 
 
Councilmember Abbott, seconded by Councilmember Oler moved to read the following ordinance by 
title only. Motion Carried 7-0. Councilmember Abbott, seconded by Councilmember Jones moved to 
suspend the rules requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. Councilmember 

http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=200&meta_id=34750
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=200&meta_id=34750
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=200&meta_id=34752
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=200&meta_id=34752
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=200&meta_id=34754
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=200&meta_id=34754


Abbott, seconded by Councilmember Meyers moved to adopt . Motion Carried 7-0. ORDINANCE NO. 95-
12. ADOPTED 7-0. 
 

Appropriation Ordinance (Non-Contractual Items) - $36,549.25 for Exit 39 - South Gilmore/Winton Road 
Improvements relocation of Duke Electric work performed in 2011.  
 
Councilmember Tim Abbott recused himselfand left the room for the reading and vote of this 
appropriation ordinance. 
 
Background: City Manager Pizzano recommended approving one non-contractual item in the amount of 
$36,549.25 for the Exit 39 - South Gilmore/Winton Road Improvements relocation of Duke Electric work 
performed in 2011. Legislative Action: Councilmember Senger presented the first reading of this 
ordinance. 
 
Councilmember Senger, seconded by Councilmember Holtegel moved to read the following ordinance 
by title only. Motion Carried 6-0. Councilmember Senger, seconded by Councilmember Holtegel moved 
to suspend the rules requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 6-0. Councilmember 
Senger, seconded by Councilmember Pennington moved to adopt . Motion Carried 6-0. ORDINANCE NO. 
96-12. ADOPTED 6-0, COUNCILMEMBER ABBOTT RECUSED. 
 
Meeting Schedule  
Clerk Wilson read the following meeting schedule: 
 

• Tuesday, October 9 Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m.  
• Monday, October 22 Council-Manager Briefing, 6:00 p.m.; Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m.  
• Monday, November 26 Council-Manager Briefing, 5:30 p.m.; Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m.  

 
Executive Session of Council (if needed)  
 
Adjournment  
The Regular Meeting of Council adjourned at8:20 PM. 
 
 
ATTEST:  

_____________________________             Date Approved___________________________ 
Clerk of Council  

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Mayor's Approval 

http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=200&meta_id=34759
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=200&meta_id=34759
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=200&meta_id=34764
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=200&meta_id=34769


! 

) 

) 

City of Fairfield, Ohio 
City Council Meeting Communication 

Date: 10-9-12 

Item: 
An ordinance authorizing the City Manager to revise the FY 2012 Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) application. 

Financial Impact: 
The requested grant re-allocation is for $39,270. 

Synopsis: 
A previously approved project was to remove a blighted apartment building on Pleasant A venue, 
north of Patterson Drive. A private business has since purchased the entire apartment complex 
and is in the processing of rehabbing this building, making the grant request unnecessary. The 
grant funding for this project is proposed to be combined with the FY 2013 grant request, which 
is for the widening of Seward Road between Port Union and Symmes Roads. 

Background: 
In order to modify an approved grant application, an ordinance supporting the new project is 
required from City Council. 

Recommendation: 
It is recommended that City Council authorize the City· Manager to revise a FY 2012 CDBG 
project, which will be submitted to the Butler County Commissioners for approval. 

Legislative Actions: 
Rules Suspension and Adoption Requested? No. 
Emergency Provision Needed? No. 



' I ~.7'\ '-· ! •\ 



0 

0 

0 

ORDINANCE NO. ___ _ 

ORDINANCE TO AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A 
REVISED FY 2012 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
(CDBG} APPLICATION AND AGREEMENT. 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Fairfield, Ohio, that: 

Section 1. 

Section 2. 

Passed 

Posted 

First Reading 

The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute a revised FY 2012 Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) application and agreement in accordance with 
the revised application and agreement on file in the office of the City Manager. 

This Ordinance shall take effect at the earliest period allowed by law. 

Mayor's Approval 

Rules Suspended 

Second Reading 

Third Reading 

ATTEST: 

Clerk of Council 

This is to certify that this Ordinance has been duly published by posting and summary 

publication as provided by Charter. 

Clerk o f Council 

Active Clients\City of Fairfield\Ordinances\2012\CDBG Revise - Ord 



) 

City of Fairfield, Ohio 
City Council Meeting Communication 

Date: 10~9~12 

Item: 
An ordinance authorizing the City Manager to execute the FY 2013 Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) application to apply funds toward upgrades to Seward Road. 

Financial Impact: 
The project is programmed in the current 2012-2016 CIP as PWA-12-103. If approved, Ohio 
Public Works Commission District 10 would be funding $750,000 (approximately 43%) of the 
project. The CDBG funding of $111,160 plus $39,270 (previous year) would provide an 
additional 8.5% funding. The estimated total cost of construction for this project is 
$1 ,757,083.68. 

Synopsis: 
The proposed project is to improve Seward Road to accommodate a center turn lane between 
Port Union Road and Symmes Road/ Union Centre Boulevard. The road is currently a two lane 
that receives heavy traffic volumes from the surrounding businesses. 

Background: 
The CBDG is a source of funding to support areas that are designated as Low to Moderate 
Income (LMI) such as these sites. The roadway improvement project meets the national 
objective of benefiting a low to moderate income neighborhood. 

Recommendation: 
It is recommended that City Council authorize the City Manager to execute the FY 2013 CDBG 
application which is due to Butler County by November 2, 2912. 

Legislative Actions: 
Rules Suspension and Adoption Requested? Yes. 
Emergency Provision Needed? Yes. 



0 



0 

0 

0 

ORDINANCE NO. _ _ __ _ 

ORDINANCE TO AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE 

FY 2013 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT {CDBG) 
APPLICATION AND AGREEMENT AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Fairfield, Ohio, that: 

Section 1. 

Section 2. 

Passed 

Posted 

First Reading 

The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the FY 2013 Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) application and agreement in accordance with 

the application and agreement on file in the office of the City Manager. 

This Ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency measure necessaryforthe 
urgent benefit and protection of the City and its inhabitants for the reason that 

the application must be filed by November 2, 2012; wherefore, this ordinance 
shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 

Mayor's Approval 

Rules Suspended 

Second Reading Emergency 

Third Reading 

ATTEST: 

Clerk of Council 

This is to certify that this Ordinance has been duly published by posting and summary 
publication as provided by Charter. 

Clerk of Council 

Act ive Clients\City of Fairfield\Ordinances\2012\COBG - Ord 



i 

) 

) 

ITEM: 

CITY OF FAIRFIELD, OHIO 
CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

Request for appropriation for non-contractual agenda items. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

$54,250.00 from noted funding source. 

SYNOPSIS: 

The following appropriations have been requested: 

Concrete repairs at Water Treatment Plant 
2012 Raised Pavement Markers (RPMs) Program 

ITEM NO. 1 I (b) \ 

October 9, 2012 

$7,480.00 
$22,000.00 
$24,770.00 Upgrade security and surveillance system at Water and Wastewater plants 

BACKGROUND: 

Please refer to specific Council Communications dated October 9, 2012 for a description of these items. 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

It is recommended that City Council suspend the rules requiring a second and third reading of this Ordinance and adopt the 
appropriations listed above. 

LEGISLATIVE ACTIONS: 

. 

Suspension of Rules & Adoption Requested? lEJ 
yes 

Emergency Provision Needed? D 
yes 

Prepared by: ~~ c ~ 

D If yes, explain 
no above 

00 If yes, explain 
no above 

Appro~ed fo~ontent byL,..A.~~- a· 
fuan~R~~<~~~~~b~~-~~~~~~~~~~~~-~~~---------------
Legal Review (where applicable) b~:_ -~~~~~~!:2~!1t'I!!~~~I!~~~!!!::!!~---------------
Accepted by Council Agenda: ;L.Xl!O<"'.......,"'-"'""""'. =!!lo.!..k- ---------------- - - ----



c 
CITY OF FAIRFIELD, OHIO 

ITEM NO. . • Q) • 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING COMMUNICATION 

DATE: 10/09/12 

Appropriation of $7,480 for professional services by T. Luckey Sons, Inc. for concrete repairs at the Water 
Treatment Plant. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

Concrete repairs at the Water Treatment Plant were included in the Capital Improvement Program, under project 
WAT-12-013 to be completed in 2012. 

SYNOPSIS: 

The project will provide repairs to various leaking concrete clarifier tanks at the Water Treatment Plant thus insuring 
the integrity of the concrete structures. 

BACKGROUND: 

The walls of the clarifiers at the water plant are showing age and stress from age, as they are cracked and leaking. 
The Water Division has obtained a price quote from T. Luckey Sons, Inc. for concrete repairs of these tanks. T. 
Luckey Sons Inc. is a company specializing in support restoration and they completed similar repairs during 2011. 
They are to supply all labor, equipment and materials required to inject polyurethane grout into the leaking cracks, 
joints and waterstops in the clarifier walls. 

( RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that City Council appropriate $7,480 from the Water Surplus Fund for professional services by T. 
Luckey Sons, Inc. for concrete repairs at the Water Treatment Plant. 

LEGISLATIVE ACTION: Suspension of Rules and Adoption Requested? [J 
yes 
D 

liD 
no 
!ID 

yes no 

0 

If yes, explain above. 

If yes, explain above. 



0 

0 

T. luckey Sons, Inc. 
Support Restoration Technologies 
1 0251 Suspension Bridge Road 
Harrison, Ohio 45030 
An EEO/Drug Free Employer 

Proposal: Scope, Exclusions. and Agreement Letter 
To: City of Fairfield Ohio Public Utilities 

Regarding: Repairing Various Leaking Concrete Cracks (Tanks) 

DATE: 

ATTN: 

FROM: 

PROPOSAL 

SENT VIA: 

September 18, 2012 

Mr. Andy Eddy 

Mr. Randall L. Brooks 

T. Luckey Sons, Inc. 

FAX. 

COPY TO: FILE. 

Total number of pages: 3 

A Terms: 

MAIL. 1 

PHONE: 513·858· 7775 

FAX: 513-829-3536 

PHONE: 513·353-2544 

FAX: 513-353-2655 

MESSENGER. II 

T. Luckey Sons, Inc. is hereinafter considered the Contractor and is also referred to as T.L.S. 

Scope of Work: 

Supply all labor, equipment and materials required for sealing leaking cracks, joints and 
waterstops through concrete water holding tanks as directed by the City of Fairfield Ohio. 
Our proposed method of repair will be by injection of potable water approved water activated 
polyurethane grout. 

Proposal Details: 

l> Drill 3/8" injection holes on approximately 45-degree angles at each leaking crack 
location as so to cross the crack approx imately Y2 the structure thickness. 

l> Drilling straight into the cracks is also acceptable depending on the surface condition 
of the concrete at each crack location. 

l> Injection holes will be drilled on approximately 1-foot centers . Injection holes may be 
drilled straight directly into cracks depending on the overall conditions of each crack. 

l> Utilize clean water to flush drilling debris from inside each injection hole. 

l> Install and secure 3/8" pressure injectors into each injection hole. 

);> Utilize clean water injected through pressure injectors to remove debris from inside 
the cracks. 

l> Beginning at the lowest point of each crack and work up begin injection of 
polyurethane grout. 

l> Grouting will continue until grout vents out of the next adjacent pressure injector and 
or crack. 

1 

'' .. ... 



0 

0 

0 

>- Cap injector and repeat the process on all remaining pressure injectors. 

)> Remove pressure injectors and patch remaining holes with hydraulic cement. 

Pricing 

Time and Materials: 

• Labor & Equipment: $2,750.00 per day (max-1 0-hours per day) 

• Polyurethane Grout: $82.50 per gallon 

Estimated Quantities: 

).> labor & Equipment: 2-days@ $2,750.00ea. = $5,500.00 

)> Polyurethane Grout: 24-gallons@ $82.50ea. = $1,980.00 

)> Totals : $7,480.00 

We estimate we can complete approximately 200 LF. within the 2-days estimated for the 
repairs . 

B. Exclusions to Scope: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4 . 

5. 

The project Owner shall provide an adequate and convenient supply of potable water for 
our grout mixing operations. 

The project Owner shall provide reasonable access to the work. Th is provided access area 
shall be utilized for storage and use of our grout materials and equipment. 

The proposed bid price does not include premiums for payment of performance bonds or 
special insurance. If a performance bond is required, then please add 2.0 percent to the 
bid price. Special Insurance shall be negotiated separately. 

Any required independent engineering, inspection, or testing services, and I or pre
construction and post-construction surveys are excluded from this proposal. 

The Project Owner shall provide all government required permits, government required 
fees, and/or any permission of adjacent property owners that may be required for the 
performance our work, except for those required for the transportation of our equipment 
and any state or local contractor's licensees. 

6. T. Luckey Sons, Inc. is excluded from any responsibility for damages caused by grout that 
enters into those underground and/ or under-slab utilities that have openings which may 
allow TLS grout to enter these underground and/or under-slab utilities. TLS strongly 
urges the project Owner to verify that all underground and/ or under-void utilities are "air
tight". lfthese utilities are not "air-tight", then the project Owner must make the utilities 
"air-tight" prior to beginning grouting operations 

7. T. Luckey Sons, Inc. is excluded from any responsibility for grout that enters into those 
underground (under slab) utilities that T. Luckey Sons, Inc. has no reason to know exist. 
These underground utilities include but are not limited to: sewer, water, drain tiles, 
elevator shafts, roof drains, and other unexpected voids. The Project Owner is 
responsible for clearly marking all project utilities and bringing to the attention of TLS 
the ex istence of these utility markings. The project Owner must mark the location of the 
under-slab utilities so that TLS can avoid drilling into these utilities. 

8. This proposal is valid for only 30 days beginning from the date of this proposal. 

9. Contractor shall only patch the drilled holes with Concrete materials. The Contractor 
shall not replace nor restore any floor coverings affected by the grouting operations. 

1 0. TLS expressly takes no design and or engineering responsibility of our performed work. 

2 



.. 

0 

0 

0 

C. Compensation and Dispute Resolution: 

1. The project Owner shall pay T. Luckey Sons, Inc. within 30 days of the date of T.L.S. 
invoice. 

2. Both Parties, the project Owner and T. Luckey Sons, Inc. agree to the following three 
provisions: 

a) Both Parties agree to arbitrate all disputes. 
b) In the event of a successful collection action by T. Luckey Sons Inc. against the project 

Owner, the project Owner agrees to pay T. Luckey Sons, Inc. interest on the owed 
principal at the prime rate plus 1.5 percent. 

c) In the event of a successful collection action by T. Luckey Sons Inc. against the project 
Owner, the project Owner agrees to provide recovery forT. Luckey Sons', Inc. attorney 
fees . 

D. Signatures Indicating Agreement to this Proposal: 

Project Owner Contractor 

T. Luckey Sons, Inc. 

By: By: Mr. Randall l. Brooks 

Title: Title: Division Manager; 

Signature:----------- Signature:-----------

Date: Date: 

reslumpl.doc 

3 



c 

0 

CITY OF FAIRFIELD, OHIO 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING COMMUNICATION 

ITEM NO. 16\n~ A: 

DATE: October 9, 2012 
ITEM: 
Appropriation for the 2012 Raised Pavement Makers (RPMs) Program. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

$22,000.00 from the .2% Street Improvement Fund ($19, 113.28 plus a contingency of $2,886.72). 

SYNOPSIS: 

Installation of new RPMs and replace existing RPM lenses under the 2012 RPM Program for various locations through out the 
City 

BACKGROUND: 

This program is setup up to install replacement RPMs and to replace lenses on selected streets. The 2012-2016 Capital 
Improvement Program has the RPMs programmed (with the pavement marking program} as PWA-12-009, in the amount of 
$100,000.00. $65,500.00 was previously encumbered from PWA-12-009 for the pavement marking program. Requests for 
proposals were made to three contractors that install RPMs. Two contractors responded. The results of the proposals received 
are: 

Company City Amount 
A & A Safety, Inc. Amelia, Ohio $ 19,113.28 
Lake Erie Construction Co. Norwalk, Ohio $ 29,875.00 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that City Council authorize an appropriation of$ 22,000.00 from the .2% Street Improvement Fund for 
the 2012 RPM program. 

LEGISLATIVE ACTION: Suspension of Rules and Adoption Requested? 

Emergency Provision Needed? 

0 
yes no 

0 ® 
no 

If yes, explain above. 

If yes, explain above. 



0 

0 

0 

ITEM 

CITY OF FAIRFIELD, OHIO 
CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

ITEM NO. II (b) {\\ k 

October 8th, 20 12 

City Council is requested to appropriate the amount of$24,770.00 from the Water Surplus Fund for 2012. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

An appropriation in the amount of $24,770.00 from the Water Surplus Fund for project FIN-12-006 from the 2012 
Capital Improvement Program. 

BACKGROUND 

In an effort to maintain the security required to protect the water production facility as well as the Waste Water plant and 
associated out buildings, a renovation and expansion/upgrade of the security camera and surveillance system has become 
necessary. This project will involve replacing the recorders as well as cameras and converting most of the system from 
analog to digital for better quality and more reliable images. This project involves the material and labor for installation 
from multiple vendors. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

It recommended City Council authorize and direct the preparation of legislation for the appropriation of $24,770.00 
from the Water Surplus Fund and suspend the rules requiring the second and third reading. 

LEGISLATIVE ACTIONS: Suspension of Rules & Adoption Requested? 
Emergency Provision Needed? 

Yes 
No 



Estimate 
Estimate No: 13 

9/24/2012 c 

0 

0 

Steve Tucker 
1723 Bladeston Drive 
Brooksville, Ky 41004 

Home: 606-735-3403 
Fax: 606-735-3403 
Cell: 606-7825261 
Email: steventucker7 @windstream. net 
Website: www.company.com 

For: 

City Of Fairfield 

Fairfield Ohio 45014 

Joseph Waldmann 

Water Treatment CCTV 

Code Description 

Date: 

Territory: 

Sales Rep 

Provide the following Axis equipment to upgrade CCTV system for Waste 
Water and Water Treatment from analog to IP. 

Provide 4 terabyte rackmount IP server 

Provide 16 Ax1s Camera license 

Provide M7010 Video Encoder 16 CH 

Provide P7214 Video Encoder 4 CH 

Cost for Indoor fixed camera M5014 High Def. 

T91A61 Wall mount bracket 

Cost for outdoor Camera P3364-VE 

Cost for PTZ P5512-E PTZ 

Labor to refocus existing camera's at Treatment 

Installation of Network drop to encoders 

Page 1 cl2 

Quantity Rate 

1.00 $0.00 

1.00 $5,222.22 

16.00 $148.57 

1.00 $2,243.75 

1.00 $873.00 

1.00 $757.07 

1.00 $109.93 

1.00 $1,207.14 

1.00 $1,639.93 

16.00 $55.00 

2.00 $325.00 

Amount 

$0.00 

$5,222.22 

$2,377.12 

$2,243.75 

$873.00 

$757.07 

$109.93 

$1,207.14 

$1,639.93 

$880.00 

$650.00 



Code Description 

Labor to install and program above equipment. 

0 Indicates non-taxable item 

0 

0 

Quant it) 

160.00 

Rate 
$55.00 

Subtotal 

TAX (0.00%) 

Total 

Amount 

$8,800.00 

$24,760.16 

$0.00 

$24,760.16 



0 

0 

0 

ORDINANCE NO. ___ _ 

ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE NO. 127-11 ENTITLED "AN 
ORDINANCE TO MAKE ESTIMATED APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE 

EXPENSES AND OTHER EXPENDITURES OF THE CITY OF FAIRFIELD, 

OHIO, DURING A PERIOD BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2012, AND 

ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2012." 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council ofthe City of Fairfield, Ohio, that: 

Section 1. Ordinance No. 127-11, the 2012 Appropriation Ordinance, is hereby amended in 

the following respects: 

From: 
To: 

From: 

To: 

To: 

Unappropriated .2% Street Improvement Fund 
40116025-252000 Improvements Other Than 
Buildings 

(Raised Pavement Marker Program) 

Unappropriated Water Surplus Fund 
60516025-252000 Improvements Other Than 
Buildings 

(Concrete Repairs at Water Treatment Plant) 

60516025-253200 Capital Equipment 

(Security Cameras) 

Section 2. This Ordinance shall take effect at the earliest period allowed by law. 

Passed 
Mayor's Approval 

Posted 

First Reading Rules Suspended 

Second Reading 

Third Reading 

ATIEST: 

Clerk of Council 

$22,000 
$22,000 

$32,250 
$7,480 

$24,770 



This is to certify that this Ordinance has been duly published by posting and summ ~ 

publication as provided by Charter. 

Clerk of Council 

Active Clients\City of Fairfield\Ordinances\2012\Non Contractual1().9- Ord 


	Regular Agenda for October 9, 2012
	Regular Meeting Minutes - September 24, 2012
	New Business
	FY 2012 Community Development Block Grant Revision
	FY 2013 Community Development Block Grant Application
	Appropriation Ordinance - Non-contractual Items
	Concrete repairs at Water Plant
	2012 Raised Pavement Markers (RPMs) Program
	Water and Wastewater Plant Security and Surveillance System Upgrades



